
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE AGENDA 

Town Hall Council Chambers April 17, 2017 at 6:00pm 
30 South Main Street  Town Council Monthly Meeting 
Weaverville, N.C. 28787 

1. Call to Order............................................................................................................................ Mayor Sherrill 

2. Approval / Adjustments to the Agenda................................................................................. Mayor Sherrill 

3. Approval of Minutes................................................................................................................ 
A. February 6, 2017 Special Called Meeting/Budget Workshop Minutes
B. March 20, 2017 Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes

Mayor Sherrill 

4. Employee Recognition............................................................................................................. Town Manager 

5. General Public Comments

6. Consent Agenda....................................................................................................................... 
Motion to approve the consent agenda 

Mayor Sherrill 

A. Earth Day Proclamation
Approval of proclamation requested.

B. Arbor Day Proclamation
Approval of proclamation requested.

C. Public Service Week Proclamation
Approval of proclamation requested.

D. Monthly Tax Report
Approval of report requested.

E. Quarterly Departmental Reports
Provided for informational purposes.

F. Ordinance Referencing Road Closures for July 4th Events
Approval of this ordinance requested.

7. Discussion & Action Items:
A. Town Manager’s Proposed Budget.......................................................................................... Town Manager 
B. Eller Cove Watershed Conservation Easement......................................................................... Town Attorney 
C. Request for Waterline Extension: 44 Central Avenue....................................................................... Public Works 

Director 

8. Town Manager’s Report.................................................................................................................. Town Manager 

9. Adjournment.................................................................................................................................... Mayor Sherrill 

1



 

 
Page 1 of 2  February 6, 2017  
  Town Council Special Called Meeting Minutes 
 

MINUTES 

 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA MONDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2017 

 

The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for a special called meeting and budget workshop on 
Monday, February 6, 2017 at 5:30pm at the Weaverville Fire Department located at 3 Monticello Road, 
Weaverville. 

Council members present were: Mayor Dottie Sherrill, Councilman Doug Jackson, Councilman Doug Dearth, 
Councilman Nagle and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons. Vice Mayor John Penley was absent. 

Staff present were: Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson and Town Manager/Town Clerk Selena Coffey, Police 
Chief Greg Stephens, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier and Public Works Director Tony 
Laughter. 

Call to Order of Workshop 
Mayor Sherrill called the meeting to order at 5:32pm. Town Manager Selena Coffey then began discussing the 
items on the agenda regarding budget deliberations for the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Budget. The first topic of 
conversation was to discuss preliminary tax valuation figures. There was stated concern that the media had 
reported a 32% average increase in tax values after the reappraisal. The Town Manager cautioned Council about 
expecting that average to come to fruition due to appeals that will be filed from this date through April and 
reminded Council that the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Budget will be drafted prior to tax valuations being finalized 
by Buncombe County. The Manager advised that the Town would not see more realistic tax valuations and 
revenue projections until appropriately April 2017.  

The Town Manager then opened discussion as Council had requested regarding the Town’s payment of retiree 
health insurance. This issue was discussed and Council requested that staff prepare a study of other jurisdictions 
with whom the Town competes for employees. In addition, Council requested that staff provide scenarios with 
current Town employees’ years of service to determine employees’ eligibility for this benefit moving forward.  

The final discussion focused on the Town’s plans for the Lake Louise Community Center and its future use. 
After discussion, Council asked staff to develop a list of individuals, and business and other organization 
representatives within the Town to potentially develop an ad hoc committee to study the best use of the facility. 
It was emphasized that this committee needs to include a cross-section of the community and the various age 
groups. Council suggested that Vice Mayor John Penley chair this group, as he had been involved in previous 
discussions on this matter.  

No formal action was taken on the aforementioned budget topics. 

At this time, Mayor Sherrill referred to Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson to state Council’s justification to enter 
into closed session. The Town Attorney then read N.C.G.S 143-318.11(a)(3) providing for Council to enter into 
closed session to consult with their attorney to preserve attorney-client privilege concerning the handling and 
settlement of the following judicial action:  Mayfair Partners, LLC, Petitioner versus the Town of Weaverville, 
Michael Watkins, Thomas Plaut and Marian Plaut, James Proffitt and Sharon Proffitt, Thomas Veasey and Sara 
Veasey, Lake Louise Preservation Association, and Conley Hyer; Buncombe County File 17-CV-246. 

2



 

 
Page 2 of 2  February 6, 2017  
  Town Council Special Called Meeting Minutes 
 

Councilman Nagle made the motion to go into closed session under the purpose as stated above by the Town 
Attorney, seconded by Councilman Dearth. All in favor. 

[Closed Session] 

Councilman Dearth made the motion to exit closed session, seconded by Councilman Nagle. All in favor. 

Councilman Dearth made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Councilman Nagle. All in favor. 

Meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:00pm. 

 

 

 

 ATTEST: 

 

 ________________________________ 
 Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM 
 Town Manager / Town Clerk 
 

3



Page 1 of 3 March 20, 2017 
Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 

MINUTES 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA MONDAY, MARCH 20, 2017 

The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regular monthly meeting on Monday, March 20, 
2017, at 6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, 
North Carolina. 

Council members present were: Mayor Dottie Sherrill, Vice Mayor/Councilman John Penley, Councilman Doug 
Jackson, Councilman Doug Dearth, Councilman Andrew Nagle and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons. 

Staff present were: Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Clerk Derek 
Huninghake, Police Chief Greg Stephens, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town Planner James Eller, Finance Officer 
Tonya Dozier and Public Works Director Tony Laughter.  

1. Call to Order
Mayor Sherrill called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda
Councilman Jackson asked that the Conservation Board/ Tree Board discussion item be removed from 
this agenda as it is a bit premature for discussion since Kaita Collier was resigning and other members 
terms are coming to an end.

Councilman Dearth made a motion to approve the agenda without the Conservation Board/Tree Board 
matter. Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded and all voted in favor of the motion.

3. Approval of Minutes
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson asked to add the reference Mayfair Partners vs Town of Weaverville 
and other respondents in the Closed session of the February 27, 2017 minutes.

Councilman Jackson made the motion to approve the minutes from February 27, 2017 as amended. 
Councilman Nagle seconded the motion and all voted in favor on the approval of the minutes.

4. Employee Recognition
Town Manager Selena Coffey recognized Derek Huninghake as new Town Clerk and Finance Officer 
Tonya Dozier for her hard work and effort in getting all the financial records up to date and ready for 
FY 2017-2018 budget.

5. General Public Comment
There were no public comments.

6. Consent Agenda

A.) Monthly Tax Report and Order to Advertise Tax Liens 
Tax Collector is requesting adoption of an order to advertise tax liens. 

4



 

 
Page 2 of 3  March 20, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

B.) Set Public Hearing on FY 2017/2018 Budget 
Town Manager recommends setting Public Hearing for May 15, 2017 at 6pm. 
 

Councilman Dearth moved for the approval of the consent agenda. Vice Mayor/Councilman Penley 
seconded the motion and all voted unanimously to approve all action requested in the consent agenda. 
 

7. Discussion and Action Items 
 
A.) Update on the Zoning Table of Uses 

Town Planner James Eller updated Council that staff and the Planning and Zoning Board have 
created most of the framework for the Zoning Table of Uses. Many more meetings are still to come 
since once the document is completed it will have to be traced throughout the entire Code of 
Ordinances. As for now, they have gotten through the tables and definitions saying the uses they 
would like and where they should be permitted.  The next phase will be going through and creating 
the permissible standards along with additional standards that should be met for use to be 
permissible on pieces of property depending on zoning district. Mr. Eller thanked the Planning and 
Zoning board for all their effort and hours put towards this process. Councilman Dearth, also 
expressed his appreciation to the Board and thanked them for their hard work.   
 

B.) Ad Hoc Committee on the Lake Louise Community Center 
Town Manager Selena Coffey informed Council per February 6, 2017 Budget Workshop, they 
expressed interest in developing an Ad Hoc Committee to review studies for the use and purpose of 
Lake Louise Community Center. The proposal for a committee includes the following members: 
Vice Mayor/Councilman John Penley, Councilman Andrew Nagle, Laura Ayers-Secretary, Public 
Works Director Tony Laughter, two Weaverville Business Association Representatives, two Lake 
Louise Preservation Association Representatives and a Tailgate Market Representative.  Ms. Coffey 
asked Council if there were any other groups that should be represented on the committee and when 
would be the best time to begin the meetings. By consensus Town Council agreed that the 
committee should be established as stated and determined that when the committee has been fully 
established, they will come up with a schedule that works best for all the members.  
 

8. Public Hearing and Action on Proposed Revision to Sign Ordinance Related to Temporary Signs 
and Signs in the R-12 District 
 
Councilman Fitzsimmons made the motion to enter into public hearing; Councilman Nagle seconded 
and all voted in favor of opening the public hearing. 
 
Town Planner James Eller addressed Council about two separate issues within the Sign Ordinance.  
Presently the Town Code as it relates to temporary signage allows for placement of such signage for a 
period of time not to exceed thirty days. On two occasions, businesses will take down signs then 
immediately reapply for an additional temporary sign permit. Also, in the creation and implementation 
of the R-12 Zoning district, language related to signage within the zoning district was not adopted.  
 
Mr. Eller is seeking approval for a revision to the language for the Sign Ordinance related to temporary 
signs and signage within the R-12 zoning district.  The revised language would be to put a cap on the 
number of days to allow for temporary signs. The cap would be not to exceed 60 days in a calendar 
year. Either 15 days every three months, 30 days every six months or 60 days per year.   

5



 

 
Page 3 of 3  March 20, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

 
The Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended approval of the revised language to the 
Sign Ordinance.  
 
Council members discussed several issues with this including businesses abusing their privileges to 
keep placing temporary signs along Weaver Boulevard, difficulty in enforcement and impact on 
political signs. 
 
Town Attorney suggested some alternate language to Section 36-201(4).  
 
Vice Mayor/Councilman Penley made the motion to close the public hearing; Councilman Nagle 
seconded and all voted in favor of closing the public hearing. 
 
Councilman Jackson made a motion to pass the Sign Ordinance with the revised language as amended . 
Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. 
 

9. Town Manager’s Report 
 
Town Manager Selena Coffey presented her manager’s report to Council including that the Town of 
Weaverville will be celebrating Arbor Day on Earth Day, April 22, 2017, our Code of Ordinances have 
been updated on the Town website, and the next Budget Workshop will be held on April 11, 2017 at 
5:30 pm at the Fire Station. 
 

10. Adjournment 
Councilman Nagle made the motion to adjourn; Vice Mayor/Councilman Penley seconded and all voted 
to adjourn the Council’s meeting at 6:30 p.m. 

 

__________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

 

6



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  April 17, 2017   

SUBJECT: Earth Day Proclamation 

PRESENTER:   Town Manager 

ATTACHMENTS: Proclamation 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Since 1970 Earth Day has been celebrated every year by people all across the world on April 22nd in 
order to increase the awareness among people about environmental safety as well as to 
demonstrate environmental protection measures. Attached is a proclamation which adds the Town 
of Weaverville to all of the many jurisdictions across the world that will be celebrating Earth Day on 
Saturday, April 22, 2017. 

 

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

The Town Manager recommends approval of this proclamation by Town Council. 

 

7



  
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

EARTH DAY 2017 PROCLAMATION 
 
 WHEREAS, since April 22, 1970, millions of people have celebrated 
Earth Day in order to increase the awareness among people of the issues 
affecting the environment in which we live; 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville recognizes the natural 
environment as the foundation of a healthy society and strong economy; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville wishes to join all of the other 
environmentally-minded jurisdictions around the world celebrating Earth 
Day; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE the Town of Weaverville proclaims Saturday, April 
22, 2017, as Earth Day and encourages all residents to join in celebrating the 
earth, as we continue to build a thriving community of residents working 
toward environmental and climate literacy. 
 
 THIS the 17th day of April, 2017. 
 
_______________________________________________ 
DOTTIE SHERRILL, Mayor 
Town of Weaverville 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________________ 
DEREK HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

8



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  April 17, 2017 

Subject:   Arbor Day Proclamation 

Presenter:   Selena Coffey, Town Manager 

Attachments:  Proclamation  

 

Description: 

Attached please find a Proclamation designating April 22, 2017 as the Town of 
Weaverville’s Arbor Day Celebration. The program will be held coupled with Earth Day 
and will begin at 11am and the Main Street Nature Park off Pine Street. 

 

 

Action Requested: 

The Town Manager recommends ratification of this proclamation by Town Council during 
this meeting. 

 

 

9



Whereas, In 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of  

Agriculture that a special day be set aside for the planting of trees, 

and 

Whereas, this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting of more 

than a million trees in Nebraska, and  

Whereas, Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and the world, and 

Whereas, trees can reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and 

water, cut heating and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air, 

produce life-giving oxygen, and provide habitat for wildlife, and 

Whereas, trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes, 

fuel for our fires and countless other wood products, and 

Whereas, trees in our city increase property values, enhance the economic vitality of 

business areas, and beautify our community, and 

Whereas, trees, wherever they are planted, are a source of joy and spiritual 

renewal. 

Now, Therefore, I, , Mayor of the Town of  

do hereby proclaim 

as 

In the Town of , and I urge all 

citizens to celebrate Arbor Day and to support efforts to protect our 

trees and woodlands, and 

Further, I urge all citizens to plant trees to gladden the heart and promote the well-being 

of this and future generations. 

Dated this  day of 

Mayor 

10



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  April 17, 2017 

Subject:   Proclamation Honoring Public Servants Week 

Presenter:   Selena Coffey, Town Manager 

Attachments:  Proclamation  

 

Description: 

Attached please find a Proclamation recognizing the week of May 7 – 13, 2017 as the 
Public Servants Week.  

 

 

Action Requested: 

The Town Manager recommends approval of this proclamation by Town Council during 
this meeting. 

 

 

11



 
 

Proclamation Honoring our Public Servants 
on Public Service Recognition Week 

 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council for the Town of Weaverville, North Carolina, hereby 
recognizes the week of May 7 -13, 2017 as Public Service Recognition Week; 
 
 WHEREAS, Public Service Week has been celebrated the first week of May since 
1985 to honor the men and women who serve as federal, state and local government 
employees; 
 
 WHEREAS, throughout the country, public servants are recognized for delivering 
valuable services to their communities; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville wishes to recognize and thank our own 
public servants for their efforts to work together in providing services to improve our 
community; 
 
 WHEREAS, we realize that the Town and its residents depends on its public 
servants, their dedication, and belief in making a difference for the Town’s residents 
and visitors; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Town of Weaverville calls upon the citizens, businesses 
and visitors to recognize the hard work and dedication of the Town’s employees and 
to observe this week by expressing their gratitude and appreciation towards the 
Towns’ public servants. 
 
 Dated this the 17th day of April, 2017. 
 
 

  ____________________________________________ 
Mayor Dottie Sherrill 

Town Council 
Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 

 
 

ATTEST: 
[SEAL] 

 
 
________________________________________________ 
Derek Huninghake 
Town Clerk  

12



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  April 17, 2017   

SUBJECT: Monthly Tax Report 

PRESENTER:   Town Manager 

ATTACHMENTS: Monthly Tax Report through 4/11/17 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Tax Collector’s monthly tax report is attached for your information.  

13



14



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  April 17, 2017   

SUBJECT: Quarterly Department Reports 

PRESENTER:   Town Manager 

ATTACHMENTS: Financial/Budget Report 
 Fire Department Report 

Planning/Zoning Department Report 
Police Department Report 

 Public Works Department Report 
  
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The quarterly department reports are presented for Town Council’s information. 

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



Weaverville Fire Department

First Quarter 2017 Activites
Fire Inside City Property Loss Outside City Property Loss

Brush / Woods 3 0 13 0

Vehicle 2 3,250 0 0

Structure 3 201,500 4 93,000

Investigation 12 0 25 0

Haz-mat Incident 2 0 1 0

Mutual Aid 0 0 64 0

Fire Alarm Activation 10 0 7 0

Public Assistance 13 0 11 0

TOTAL (Fire) 45 204,750 125 93,000

Rescue

MVA \ MCA 15 0 25 0

EMS \ FR \ Rescue 110 0 108 0

Mutual Aid 0 0 3 0

Search 0 0 0 0

TOTAL (Rescue) 125 0 136 0

    

TOTAL Fire & Rescue 170 204,750 261 93,000

Remarks: Total Fire\Rescue Alarms:  431

Total Fire Loss:  $297,750 Total Saved: 2,895,400

Total Inspections:   21

Fire loss includes 2 commercial fires at 179 Merrimon Avenue (Sample Group)
 and at 220 Merrimon Avenue (Thermo Fisher)

Date:4/11/2017 TW

23



 

Planning Department Report – Q1, 2017 
 

Total Zoning Permits Issued: 29 
 
Single family dwellings: 16 
Internal upfit or auxiliary structure: 9 
Commercial: 3 (58 Weaver Village Way, 56 N. Main, 76 N. Main) 
Home Occupation: 1 
 
Sign Permits: 4 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

24



25



26



27



28



29



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  April 17, 2017 

Subject:   Ordinance for Road Closure for July 4th 5K and Fire on the Lake 

Presenter:   Selena Coffey, Town Manager 

Attachments:  Ordinance and maps  

 

Description: 

Attached please find an ordinance for Town Council’s approval of the closure of relative 
roadways for the July 4, 2017 Kiwanis 5k and the Fire on the Lake Celebration at Lake 
Louise. 

 

 

Action Requested: 

The Town Manager recommends approval of this Ordinance. 

 

 

30



31



32



33



34



35



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  April 17, 2017 

Subject:   Town Manager’s Proposed FY 2018 Budget 

Presenter:   Selena Coffey, Town Manager 

Attachments:  No attachments 

 

Description: 

The Town Manager will be presenting her proposed FY 2018 Budget at this evening’s 
meeting. The next budget workshop will be held on May 9th and the Public Hearing on 
the Budget will be held on 15th. 

 

 

Action Requested: 

No action is required at this meeting. 

 

 

36



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  April 17, 2017   

SUBJECT: Eller Cove Watershed Conservation Easement 

PRESENTER:   Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENTS: Final Conservation Easement with Final Survey 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Town is getting close to finalizing the transaction in which it will be transferring a conservation 
easement to the Southern Appalachian Highlands Conservancy for approximately 310 acres of the 
Eller Cover watershed. As Town Council will recall, the Southern Appalachian Highlands 
Conservancy was the grant recipient of a North Carolina Clean Water Management Trust Fund 
grant which, together with other donations, will provide the Town with approximately $525,000 in 
exchange for the conservation easement. Closing is expected to occur either late May or early June. 

Town Council approved a conservation easement by adopting a resolution at its meeting in January 
2017. The NC Clean Water Management Trust Fund easement document format has recently 
changed and the Town is required to reauthorize the conservation easement. For Council’s review, 
the final conservation easement is attached which shows the changes from the previous document, 
along with the final survey. 

The Baseline Documentation Report has been finalized and contains interesting information 
concerning the Eller Cove Watershed area. Due to the length of the Report it is not attached to this 
agenda item but can be accessed at Town Hall. 

 

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to approve the execution of the conservation easement that is attached and 
to authorize the Mayor, Town Clerk, Town Manager and Town Attorney, as appropriate, to finalize, 
execute and deliver any and all documents necessary to transfer the conservation easement 
including specifically the attached conservation easement and baseline documentation report. 

Should Town Council wish to discuss where the proceeds of the transaction should be deposited the 
Town Manager and Town Attorney will be available at tonight’s meeting to guide Council through 
that conversation. 

 

37



CWMTF CE Weaverville Watershed – Grant #2015-072 

Nonprofit Organization  
1  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSERVATION EASEMENT 

Weaverville Watershed Property 

 

  

Prepared by: SOUTHERN APPALACHIAN HIGHLANDS CONSERVANCY and Clean Water 

Management Trust Fund 

 

After Recording Return to:  NC Clean Water Management Trust Fund 

    Attn: Real Property Counsel 

    1651 Mail Service Center 

    Raleigh, NC 27699-1651 

 

 

NORTH CAROLINA                              BUNCOMBE COUNTY  

Tax Parcel No. 9751-76-9307                CWMTF No. 2015-072 

 

 

THIS DEED OF CONSERVATION EASEMENT ("Conservation Easement") is made, given, 

granted and executed on this the ___ day of __________, 2017 by and between the TOWN OF 

WEAVERVILLE with an address at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, NC 28787 (“Grantor”) and the 

SOUTHERN APPALACHIAN HIGHLANDS CONSERVANCY, a Tennessee nonprofit corporation with 

an address at 34 Wall Street, Suite 502372 Merrimon Avenue, Asheville, NC 28801 ("SAHC" or “Grantee,” 

and together with the Grantor, the “Parties”). 
 

RECITALS & CONSERVATION PURPOSES 

   

            A. Grantor is a local government that owns in fee simple absolute certain real property lying and 

being in Reems Creek Township, Buncombe County, North Carolina (the “Property”), and more particularly 

described on the attached “Exhibit A” incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. The Parties agree to 

exclude four areas totaling 3.3684 acres of land from the Conservation Easement (the "Excluded Areas"), each 

labeled "3.36 Acres Excluded from Conservation Easement" as shown on a plat prepared by McMahan & 

Associates, P.A., for the NC Clean Water Management Trust Fund dated March 20________, 2017, duly 

recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Buncombe County, North Carolina in Plat Book 172___ 

Page 200___. 

 

38



CWMTF CE Weaverville Watershed – Grant #2015-072 

Nonprofit Organization  
2  

B. Grantee is a non-profit organization whose primary purpose is the conservation, preservation, or 

restoration of North Carolina’s cultural, environmental, or natural resources. 

 

C. The State has enacted the North Carolina Conservation and Historic Preservation Agreements 

Act (the “Act”), Chapter 121, Article 4 of the North Carolina General Statutes (“N.C.G.S.”), which provides for 

the enforceability of restrictions, easements, covenants or conditions "appropriate for retaining land or water 

areas predominantly in their natural, scenic, or open condition . . . ."  

 

D. The Clean Water Management Trust Fund is authorized by N.C.G.S. Chapter 143B, Article 2, 

Part 41 to acquire land and interests in land:  

 

• for riparian buffers for the purposes of providing environmental protection for surface waters and urban 

drinking water supplies and establishing a network of riparian greenways for environmental, 

educational, and recreational uses; and 

 

• for the purpose of protecting and conserving surface waters and enhancing drinking water supplies, 

including the development of water supply reservoirs; and 

 

• to provide buffers around military bases to protect the military mission; and 

 

• that represents the ecological diversity of North Carolina, including natural features such as riverine, 

montane, coastal, and geologic systems and other natural areas to ensure their preservation and 

conservation for recreational, scientific, educational, cultural, and aesthetic purposes; and 

 

• that contributes to the development of a balanced State program of historic properties.  

 

E. Grantor and Grantee have agreed to set aside 309.87310.39 acres of the Property (as described in 

the attached “Exhibit B” incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein and hereinafter referred to as the 

“Easement Area”) for the purpose of creating a conservation easement to:  

 

• preserve, enhance, restore, and maintain the natural features and resources of the Easement Area, to 

provide habitat for native plants and animals, to control runoff of sediment, and to improve and maintain 

water quality, including providing environmental protection for surface waters of portions of Eller Cove 

Branch and its tributaries.  

 

• protect and preserve the ecological diversity represented by the Easement Area for recreational, 

scientific, educational, cultural and aesthetic purposes. 

 

 Moreover, Grantor and Grantee recognize that the Easement Area has other conservation values, 

including fish and wildlife conservation, open space, and scenic values (hereinafter, collectively with the 

conservation values defined in this Section E of the Recitals and Conservation Purposes of this Agreement,  the 

“Conservation Values”). 
 

 F. Grantor grants and conveys unto the Grantee, its successors, assigns and designated representatives, 

a right of ingress, egress, and regress from a public road across the lands of the Grantor to the Easement Area, for 

the purpose of gaining uninterrupted access to the Easement Area described herein above. 

39



CWMTF CE Weaverville Watershed – Grant #2015-072 

Nonprofit Organization  
3  

 

 G. Grantor and Grantee recognize that the Easement Area contains tributaries of Eller Cove Branch 

and that the Easement Area has been deemed by the State to qualify as a riparian buffer, addressing the 

protection, including, but not limited to, cleanup and prevention of pollution, of the State’s surface waters, and 

the establishment of a network of riparian buffers.  

 

 H. Grantor and Grantee recognize that the Easement Area represents the ecological diversity of North 

Carolina, including, but not necessarily limited to, natural features such as Rich Cove Forest, Montane Oak-

Hickory Forest, and habitat for migratory and threatened bird species. Grantor and Grantee further recognize 

that restricting use of the Easement Area in the manner set forth herein will facilitate preservation and 

conservation of these natural features for recreational, scientific, educational, cultural, and aesthetic purposes. 

 

 I. Grantee has received or will receive a grant from the Fund, identified as Grant Contract No. 

2015-072 (the “Grant Contract”), entered into between the Grantee and the Fund and effective as of February 8, 

2016, in consideration of which the Grantor has agreed to enter into this Conservation Easement (the “Project”). 

The terms and conditions of said Grant Contract are hereby incorporated by reference.  It is on file and available 

for public inspection in the offices of the Grantee and, the Fund, and the North Carolina Department of Natural 

and Cultural Resources (“NC DNCR”).    

  

  J. Grantor and Grantee acknowledge that the Easement Area is currently unimproved except as 

permitted in Article V of this Conservation Easement.  The characteristics of the Easement Area, its current use 

and state of improvement are described in a Baseline Documentation Report (the “BDR”), as incorporated into 

the Grant Contract, that is on file in the offices of the Grantee and the Fund and available for public inspection.  

The Parties acknowledge that the BDR is the appropriate basis for monitoring compliance with the objectives of 

preserving the conservation and water quality values; and that it is not intended to preclude the use of other 

evidence (e.g. surveys, appraisals) to establish the present condition of the Easement Area if there is a 

controversy over such present condition.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual benefits recited herein, together 

with other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by the 

Parties, the Grantor hereby unconditionally and irrevocably gives, grants and conveys forever and in perpetuity 

to the Grantee, its successors and assigns, and the Grantee hereby accepts, this Conservation Easement of the 

nature and character and to the extent hereinafter set forth in, over, through and across the Easement Area, 

together with the right and easement to preserve and protect the Conservation Values. 

 

 The purpose(s) of this Conservation Easement is to protect and preserve the Conservation Values as 

outlined above in Section E of the Recitals and Conservations Purpose(s) and it shall be so held, maintained, 

and used therefore. Grantor hereby conveys to Grantee all development rights that are now or hereafter 

allocated to, implied or inherent in the Easement Area, and the Parties agree that such rights are terminated and 

extinguished, and may not be used on or transmitted to any portion of the Property, as it now or hereafter may 

be bounded or described, or to any other property.  It is the further purpose of this Conservation Easement to 

prevent any use of the Easement Area that will significantly impair or interfere with the preservation of said 

Conservation Values. Grantor intends that this Conservation Easement will restrict the use of the Easement 

Area to such activities as are consistent with the Conservation Values described in the Recitals herein.  

40



CWMTF CE Weaverville Watershed – Grant #2015-072 

Nonprofit Organization  
4  

 

ARTICLE I. DURATION OF EASEMENT 

  

 This Conservation Easement shall be perpetual.  It is an easement in gross, runs with the land, and is 

enforceable by Grantee against Grantor, its representatives, successors, assigns, lessees, agents and licensees.  

  

ARTICLE II.   RIGHTS RESERVED TO GRANTOR 

 

Grantor reserves certain rights accruing from the fee simple ownership of the Property, including the 

right to engage in or permit others to engage in the uses of the Easement Area that are not inconsistent with the 

purpose(s) of this Conservation Easement.  All rights reserved by the Grantor, are reserved for Grantors, their 

representatives, successors, and assigns, and are considered to be consistent with the purpose(s) of this 

Conservation Easement. Except for the specific restrictions and prohibitions made applicable herein to the 

Easement Area, Grantor shall continue to own and may use the Property in any lawful manner.  The Parties 

acknowledge and agree that they have no right to agree to any activity that would result in the termination of 

this Conservation Easement. 

  

 The Easement Area shall be restricted from any development or usage that would impair or interfere with 

the purposes of this Conservation Easement.  The following uses are reserved as indicated:  

 

A.  Passive Recreational Use.   Grantor reserves the right to engage in and to permit others to 

engage in passive recreational uses of the Easement Area, so long as related alterations, construction, 

improvements, maintenance, activities and uses: (1) require minimal surface alteration of the land; (2) pose no 

threat to the Conservation Values of the Easement Area; and (3) be pursuant to a Management Plan for the 

Property (the “Management Plan”), which shall be subject to the terms of this Conservation Easement. The 

Town shall formally adopt the Plan before the Easement Area is opened to the public for recreational use, 

subject to approval by the Grantee, SAHC and the Fund.  The Town may amend the Plan from time to time, 

subject to approval by the Grantee and the Fund.  By way of illustration, such passive recreational uses may 

include non-commercial hunting, fishing, hiking, walking, scientific study, animal/plant observation, nature and 

environmental education, historic tours, photography, and any other purposes consistent with these accepted 

uses and the maintenance of the Conservation Values, subject to all applicable federal, state and local laws and 

regulations.  All improvements shall be subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Management 

Plan, and by the aforementioned Grant Contract. Usage of motorized vehicles in the Easement Area is 

prohibited, except as they are used exclusively for management, maintenance, or stewardship purposes, and any 

such use of motorized vehicles will be restricted to existing trails, paths or roads.  

 

 B. Public Use and Access. Grantor reserves the right to allow public access and use of the Easement 

Area for the purpose of creating open space with associated passive recreational activities as provided for herein 

and pursuant to the Management Plan. 

 

C. Existing Roads and Trails.   Grantor reserves the right to maintain existing unpaved roads and 

trails in the Easement Area.  These roads and trails shall not be paved or covered with asphalt, but gravel and 

permanent vegetation may be used to stabilize them. Associated ditches, culverts, and bridges may be 

maintained and replaced as necessary as maintenance of the road or trail.   

 

41



CWMTF CE Weaverville Watershed – Grant #2015-072 

Nonprofit Organization  
5  

D. Greenway Trails.  Subject to the Fund’s written approval as specified herein, Grantor reserves 

the right to construct and maintain paved greenway trails on the Easement Area for the purpose of recreation.  

All paved greenway trails must be located a minimum distance of 30 feet from the top of bank of surface 

waters, unless such locations are physically impracticable, and must be located so as not to impair the 

Conservation Values as set forth herein.  When required by the terrain, paved greenway trails may include 

boardwalks, ramps and handrails to the extent necessary.  The Grantor may also construct and maintain park 

benches, litter receptacles, and trail/feature signs along these paved greenway trails. All necessary care shall be 

taken to complete the construction of such features and paved greenway trails in a manner so as not to impair 

any Conservation Values either during or after construction.  All new paved greenway trail alignments that do 

not follow existing roads or railroad/utility corridors require prior written approval by the Fund.  The Fund 

reserves the right to close any paved greenway trails that are considered detrimental to conservation values.   

 

E. Natural Surface Trails.   Subject to the Fund’s written approval as specified herein, Grantor 

reserves the right to construct new natural surface trails on the Easement Area for the purpose of hiking and 

non-motorized bicycling.  All natural surface trails must be located a minimum distance of 30 feet from the top 

of the bank of all surface water, unless such locations are physically impracticable, and must be located so as 

not to impair the Conservation Values as set forth herein. All new trail construction and realignment requiring 

soil disturbance must follow best practices for sustainable trail design and construction, and must have prior 

written approval by the Fund. When required by the terrain, natural surface trails may include boardwalks, 

ramps and handrails to the extent necessary.  The Grantor may also construct and maintain park benches, litter 

receptacles, and trail/feature signs along natural surface trails. All necessary care shall be taken to complete the 

construction of such features and natural surface trails in a manner so as not to impair any Conservation Values 

either during or after construction. The Fund reserves the right to close any natural surface trails that are 

considered detrimental to conservation values.   

 

F. Stream Crossings.  Grantor reserves the right to construct and maintain bridges or other stream 

crossings to be constructed up to ten (10) feet wide across streams in the Conservation Easement area, provided 

such crossings are connected to trails permitted herein, constructed in a way as to maximize water quality 

protection, and permitted by all applicable regulatory authorities.  The number of stream crossings must be 

minimized.  New stream crossings require prior written approval by the Fund. 

C. Hiking and Greenway Trails.  Grantor reserves the right to construct and maintain paved 

and/or unpaved trails on the Easement Area.  All new trails shall be pursuant to the Management Plan.  All 

unpaved trails must be located a minimum distance of thirty (30) feet from the top of the bank of Eller Cove 

Branch and its tributaries, except for creek crossings and unless such locations are physically impracticable. All 

paved trails must be located a minimum distance of 30 feet from the top of bank of surface waters. All trails, 

paved and/or unpaved, must be located so as not to impair the Conservation Values as set forth herein.  In the 

construction of such trails and when required by the terrain, boardwalks, ramps and handrails are permitted 

herein. The Grantor may also construct and maintain park benches, litter receptacles, and trail/feature signs 

along the trails. All necessary care shall be taken to complete the construction of such features in a manner so as 

not to impair any Conservation Values either during or after construction.  

 D. Pedestrian Foot Bridges.  Grantor reserves the right to construct, maintain, and gain access to 

six (6) pedestrian footbridge(s) to be constructed five (5) to ten (10) feet wide across Eller Cove Branch or its 

tributaries, provided such bridges are connected to the trails permitted herein and permitted by all applicable 

regulatory authorities.   

 

42



CWMTF CE Weaverville Watershed – Grant #2015-072 

Nonprofit Organization  
6  

 E. Observation/Viewing Platform or Covered Pavilion.  Grantor reserves the right to construct, 

maintain, and repair a total of two (2) observation/viewing platform(s) or covered pavilion(s) on the Easement 

Area with optional bench seating, picnic table(s), roof, handrails, connecting steps and ramp as required by the 

terrain, so long as Conservation Values are not impaired.  Observation/Viewing Platforms or Covered Pavilions 

may be located on the bank of the tributaries of Eller Cove Branch if allowed and approved by the Grantee, 

SAHC and the Fund and all applicable regulatory authorities, provided such platform is connected to the trails 

constructed on the Easement Area.  All necessary care shall be taken to complete the construction of such 

features in a manner so as not to impair any Conservation Values either during or after construction.  

 

 F. Vegetation Management.  Grantor reserves the right to manage vegetation for the following 

activities, and as necessary for other activities specifically reserved herein by Grantor: (1) boundary marking, 

fencing, and signage; (2) selective cutting and prescribed burning and the application of herbicides and 

pesticides for fire containment, insect and disease control, restoration of hydrology, wetlands enhancement, and 

or control of invasive exotic plants; and (3) removal of damaged trees and debris caused by storms, disease or 

fire and posing a threat to life or property. 

 

 G. Native Community Restoration, Management, and Maintenance.   Grantor reserves the right 

to perform all activities necessary to restore, manage, and/or maintain the native plant and animal communities 

on the Easement Area.  All necessary care shall be taken to protect all Conservation Values and restoration and 

managements shall be carried out in a manner so as not to cause or allow harm or degradation to any 

Conservation Values either during or after restoration activities. 

 

 H. Hunting and Fishing.   Grantor reserves the right to hunt and fish pursuant to all federal, state, 

and local rules and regulations. 

  

ARTICLE III. PROHIBITED AND RESTRICTED ACTIVITIES 

  

 Any activity on, or use of, the Easement Area inconsistent with the purpose(s) of this Conservation 

Easement is prohibited.  The Easement Area shall be maintained in its natural, scenic, wooded and open condition 

and restricted from any development or use that would impair or interfere with the purpose(s) of this Conservation 

Easement.  

  

 Except for those rights specifically reserved to Grantor in Article II and without limiting the 

generality of the foregoing, the following activities and uses are expressly prohibited or restricted.  

 

  A. Industrial and Commercial Use.  Industrial and commercial activities are prohibited on the 

Easement Area except for occasional collection of a fee or donation by Grantor from individuals or groups for 

use of the improvements otherwise allowed by this Conservation Easement, so long as the Conservation Values 

of the Easement Area are protected.  

  

 B. Agricultural, Grazing and Horticultural Use.  Agriculture, grazing, horticultural and animal 

husbandry operations and any rights of passage for such purposes are prohibited on the Easement Area. 

 

 C. Disturbance of Natural Features, Plants and Animals.  There shall be no cutting or removal of 

trees, or the disturbance of other natural features within the Easement Area except as noted in Article II.  

 

43



CWMTF CE Weaverville Watershed – Grant #2015-072 

Nonprofit Organization  
7  

 D. Construction of Buildings and Recreational Use.  There shall be no constructing or placing of 

any building, mobile home, asphalt or concrete pavement, billboard or other advertising display, antenna, utility 

pole, tower, conduit, line, pier, landing, dock or any other temporary or permanent structure or facility on or 

above the Easement Area. 

 

 E. Signs.  Signs are not permitted within the Easement except as follows: no trespassing signs; 

local, state, or federal traffic or similar information signs; for sale or lease signs; signs identifying the 

Conservation Values of the Easement; signs identifying the Grantor as owner of the Property; signs identifying 

the Grantee as holder of the Conservation Easement; and educational and interpretative signs.  

  

 F. Mineral Use, Excavation, Dredging.  There shall be no filling, excavation, dredging, mining or 

drilling; no removal of topsoil, sand, gravel, rock, peat, minerals, hydrocarbons, or other materials. There shall 

be no change in the topography of the land in any manner except as necessary for the purpose of combating 

erosion or incidental to any conservation management activities otherwise permitted on the Easement Area.   

G. Wetlands and Water Quality.  Except as set forth in Article II above, there shall be no 

pollution or alteration of surface waters and no construction or other activities that would be detrimental to 

water quality or that would alter natural water levels, drainage, sedimentation and/or flow in or over the 

Easement Area or into any surface waters, or cause soil degradation or erosion, nor any diking, dredging, 

alteration, draining, filling or removal of wetlands, except activities to restore natural hydrology, wetlands 

enhancement, or to enhance or improve water quality as permitted by state and any other appropriate 

authorities, and then only after written approval is granted by the Fund for such activities. 

 H.   Dumping.  Dumping of soil, trash, ashes, garbage, waste, abandoned vehicles, appliances, or 

machinery, or other materials on the Easement Area is prohibited.   

 

 I. Conveyance and Subdivision.  The Easement Area or any underlying property interest within 

the Easement Area may not be subdivided, partitioned nor conveyed, except in its current configuration as an 

entity or block of property. 

 

 J. Open Space and Development Rights.  The Easement Area shall not be used to satisfy open 

space requirements of any cluster or other development scheme; nor shall the development rights encumbered 

hereby be transferred to any other land pursuant to a transfer of development rights scheme or cluster 

development arrangement or otherwise. 

 

 K. Mitigation.  There shall be no use of the Easement Area or any portion thereof to satisfy 

compensatory mitigation requirements under 33 USC Section 1344 or NCGS §143-214.11 or any successor or 

replacement provision of the foregoing. 

  

ARTICLE IV. ENFORCEMENT AND REMEDIES 

  

 A. Enforcement and Remedies. To accomplish the purpose(s) of this Conservation Easement, 

Grantee is allowed to prevent any activity on or use of the Easement Area that is inconsistent with the 

purpose(s) of this Conservation Easement, and to require the prompt restoration to the condition required by this 

Conservation Easement of such areas or features of the Easement Area that may have been damaged by such 

activity or use. Upon any breach of the terms of this Conservation Easement by Grantor that comes to the 

44



CWMTF CE Weaverville Watershed – Grant #2015-072 

Nonprofit Organization  
8  

attention of the Grantee, the Grantee shall, except as provided below, notify the Grantor in writing of such 

breach. The Grantor shall have ninety (90) days after receipt of such notice to correct the conditions constituting 

such breach.  If the breach remains uncured after ninety (90) days, the Grantee may enforce this Conservation 

Easement by appropriate legal proceedings including damages, injunctive and other relief. The Grantee shall 

also have the power and authority, consistent with its statutory authority:  (a) to prevent any impairment of the 

Easement Area by acts which may be unlawful or in violation of this Conservation Easement; (b) to otherwise 

preserve or protect its interest in the Easement Area; or (c) to seek damages from any appropriate person or 

entity.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Grantee reserves the immediate right, without notice, to obtain a 

temporary restraining order, injunction or other appropriate relief if the breach of the term of this Conservation 

Easement is or would irreversibly or otherwise materially impair the benefits to be derived from this 

Conservation Easement.  The Grantor and Grantee acknowledge that under such circumstances damage to the 

Grantee would be irreparable and remedies at law will be inadequate. The rights and remedies of the Grantee 

provided hereunder shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, all other rights and remedies available to Grantee 

in connection with this Conservation Easement, including, without limitation, those set forth in the Grant 

Contract under which this Conservation Easement was obtained.   

  

 B. Access for Inspection and Right of Entry. Grantee shall have the right, by and through their 

agents and employees, to enter the Property to inspect the Property for compliance with this Conservation 

Easement at all reasonable times and with prior notice and, if necessary, cross other lands retained by the 

Grantor for the purposes of (1) inspecting the Property to determine if the Grantor is complying with the 

covenants and purpose(s) of this Conservation Easement; (2) enforcing the terms of this Conservation 

Easement; (3) taking any and all actions with respect to the Property as may be necessary or appropriate with or 

without order of the Court, to remedy or abate violations hereof; and (4) making scientific and educational 

observations and studies and taking samples in such a manner as will not disturb the quiet enjoyment of the 

Property by the Grantor. 

 

           C. Termination and Proceeds of Property Rights Created.  This Conservation Easement gives 

rise to a property right that is immediately vested in the Grantee at the time of recordation, with a fair market 

value that is equal to the proportionate value that the Conservation Easement bears to the value of the Property 

as a whole on the date of the recording of this Conservation Easement.  This proportionate value shall remain 

constant.   

 

1.  Eminent Domain.  Whenever all or part of the Property is taken by exercise of eminent domain 

by public, corporate or other authority, or by negotiated sale in lieu of condemnation, so as to abrogate 

the restrictions imposed by this Conservation Easement, the Grantor shall immediately give notice to 

Grantee and the Fund, and shall take all appropriate actions at the time of such taking or sale to recover 

the full value of the taking and all incidental or direct damages resulting from the taking.  The Grantee, 

its successors and assigns, shall be entitled to a portion of the proceeds of such sale, exchange, 

involuntary conversion of the Property, or any damage award with respect to any judicial proceeding 

according to Grantee’s proportional interest in the value of the Property as determined under Treasury 

Regulations §1.170A-14(g)(6)(ii) or any successor regulation.   “Proceeds of Sale” shall mean the cash 

value of all money and property paid, transferred or contributed in consideration for, or as otherwise 

required as a condition to the sale, exchange or involuntary conversion of the Property, or any damages 

otherwise awarded as a result of judicial proceeding, minus the Grantor’s expenses from such 

transaction or proceeding.  As allowed by NCGS §146-30(a), Grantee shall use its share of the Proceeds 

of Sale in a manner consistent with the purpose(s) of the Conservation Easement as set forth herein.  

45



CWMTF CE Weaverville Watershed – Grant #2015-072 

Nonprofit Organization  
9  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, all Proceeds of Sale shall be distributed among the Parties according to 

each Party’s respective contribution to the purchase price of the Property and this Conservation 

Easement.  For the purposes of determining any distribution of proceeds pursuant to this section, 

Grantor’s proportionate contribution to the purchase price shall be deemed to be __%, and Grantee’s 

proportionate contribution to the purchase price shall be deemed to be __%. 

 

2.   Changed Conditions.  If a subsequent, unexpected change in conditions surrounding the Property 

makes impossible or impractical the continued use of the Property for  the purpose(s) of this 

Conservation Easement as set forth herein, and the Conservation Easement is extinguished by judicial 

proceeding, the Grantee, its successor and assigns, shall be entitled to a portion of the proceeds of any 

sale, exchange, involuntary conversion of the Property, or any damage award with respect to any judicial 

proceeding according to Grantee’s proportional interest in the value of the Property as determined under 

Treasury Regulations §1.170A-14(g)(6)(ii) or any successor regulation.  “Proceeds of Sale” shall mean 

the cash value of all money and property paid, transferred or contributed in consideration for or as 

otherwise required as a condition to the sale, exchange or involuntary conversion of the Property, or any 

damages otherwise awarded as a result of judicial proceeding, minus the Grantor’s expenses from such 

transaction or proceeding.  As allowed by NCGS §146-30(a), Grantee shall use its share of the Proceeds 

of Sale in a manner consistent with the purpose(s) of the Conservation Easement as set forth herein.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, all Proceeds of Sale shall be distributed among the Parties according to 

each Party’s respective contribution to the purchase price of the Property and this Conservation 

Easement.  For the purposes of determining any distribution of proceeds pursuant to this section, 

Grantor’s proportionate contribution to the purchase price shall be deemed to be __%, and Grantee’s 

proportionate contribution to the purchase price shall be deemed to be __%. 

  

 D.    Acts Beyond Grantor’s Control.  Nothing contained in this Conservation Easement shall be 

construed to entitle Grantee to bring any action against Grantor for any injury or change in the Easement Area 

resulting from the acts of third parties not authorized by Grantor, or from causes beyond the Grantor’s control, 

including, without limitation, fire, flood, storm, and earth movement, or from any prudent action taken in good 

faith by the Grantor under emergency conditions to prevent, abate, or mitigate significant injury to life, property 

damage or harm to the Easement Area resulting from such causes.  

  

 E. Costs of Enforcement.  Any costs incurred by Grantee in enforcing the terms of this 

Conservation Easement against Grantor, including, without limitation, any costs of restoration necessitated by 

Grantor’s acts or omissions in violation of the terms of this Conservation Easement, shall be borne by Grantor. 

  

            F. No Waiver.  Enforcement of this Conservation Easement shall be at the discretion of the Grantee 

and any forbearance by Grantee to exercise its rights hereunder in the event of any breach of any term set forth 

herein shall not be deemed or construed to be a waiver by Grantee of such term or of any subsequent breach of 

the same or of any other term of this Conservation Easement or of Grantee’s rights. No delay or omission by 

Grantee in exercise of any right or remedy shall impair such right or remedy or be construed as a waiver. 

 

ARTICLE V. TITLE 

  

 The Grantor covenants and represents and warrants (i) that the Grantor is the sole owner and is seized of 

the Property and Easement Area in fee simple and has good right to grant and convey the aforesaid 

Conservation Easement; (ii) that there is legal access to the Property and the Easement Area, (iii) that the 

46



CWMTF CE Weaverville Watershed – Grant #2015-072 

Nonprofit Organization  
10  

Property and Easement Area are free and clear of any and all encumbrances, except those permitted exceptions 

outlined below, none of which would nullify, impair or limit in any way the terms or effect of this Conservation 

Easement; (iv) that Grantor shall defend its title against the claims of all persons whomsoever; and (v) that the 

Grantee, its successors and assigns, shall have the right to monitor and defend the terms of the aforesaid 

Conservation Easement.  

 

ARTICLE VI. MISCELLANEOUS 

 

 A. Stewardship of the Conservation Easement.  Pursuant to the terms of the Grant Contract and 

any contract for stewardship of the Easement Area entered into pursuant to the Grant Contract, the Southern 

Appalachian Highlands Conservancy will monitor and observe the Easement Area in perpetuity to assure 

compliance with the purposes and provisions of this Conservation Easement and the provisions of the Grant 

Contract, and that it will report on the condition of the Easement Area, or provide for such reporting to the State 

and the Fund no less frequently than once a year; and further will report immediately to the State and the Fund 

any observed and/or known violations of this Conservation Easement or the Grant Contract.  The Parties 

acknowledge that the associated stewardship monies awarded under the Grant Contract are administered 

pursuant to NCGS §143B-135.236 which establishes the North Carolina Conservation Easement Endowment 

Fund, or any successor law, and the internal policies and procedures of the Fund, and that the Southern 

Appalachian Highlands Conservancy’s obligation to monitor the Easement Area at any given time is contingent 

on the availability of said stewardship funds.   Further, the Parties acknowledge that this obligation to monitor 

the Easement Area is assignable provided such assignment is made with the prior written approval of the Fund 

and evidenced by a written instrument signed by the Parties thereto and recorded in the Office of the Register of 

Deeds of Buncombe County.  Provided further, that any such assignment of the Southern Appalachian 

Highlands Conservancy’s obligation to monitor the Easement Area shall include a right of entry onto the 

Property and the Easement Area for the assignee of said monitoring obligation, and shall require the monitoring 

to be carried out in accordance with and subject to NCGS §143B-135.236 or any successor law, and the Fund’s 

internal stewardship policies and procedures.   The Parties specifically acknowledge that neither the Southern 

Appalachian Highlands Conservancy's obligation to monitor the Easement Area, nor its assignment of said 

obligation, shall have any effect on the rights and obligations of the Grantee of this Conservation Easement.  

Further, the Parties covenant that the obligation to provide monitoring of the Easement Area will survive any 

transfer of Grantor’s fee interest in the Property.  

 

 B. Subsequent Transfers of the Fee. Grantor agrees for itself, its successors and assigns, that in 

the event it transfers the Property, or any portion thereof including the Easement Area, to notify the Grantee and 

the Fund in writing of the names and addresses of any party to whom the Property is to be transferred at or prior 

to the time said transfer is consummated.  Grantor, for itself, its successors and assigns, further agrees to make 

specific reference to this Conservation Easement in a separate paragraph of any subsequent lease, deed, or other 

legal instrument by which any interest in the Property is conveyed. The Property owner shall not convey the 

Property or any interest therein, and shall not incur, assume, or suffer to exist any lien, upon or with respect to the 

Property, without disclosing to the prospective buyer the Conservation Easement, the obligations of the Property 

owner and limitations on use of the Property             

 

 C.       Subsequent Transfers of the Conservation Easement. The Parties hereto recognize and agree 

that the benefits of this Conservation Easement are in gross and assignable with any such assignee having all the 

rights and remedies of Grantee hereunder.  The Parties hereby covenant and agree, that in the event this 

Conservation Easement is transferred or assigned,  the transferee or assignee of the Conservation Easement will 

47



CWMTF CE Weaverville Watershed – Grant #2015-072 

Nonprofit Organization  
11  

be a qualified organization as that term is defined in Section 170(h)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 

amended, or any successor section, and the regulations promulgated thereunder (the ”Code”) that is organized 

or operated primarily for one of the conservation purposes specified in Section 170(h)(4)(A) of the Code, a 

qualified holder as that term is defined in the Act or any successor statute, and a qualified grant recipient 

pursuant to N.C.G.S. Chapter 143B, Article 2, Part 41.  The Parties further covenant and agree that the terms of 

the transfer or the assignment will be such that the transferee or assignee will be required to continue to carry 

out in perpetuity the purpose(s) of the Conservation Easement that the contribution was originally intended to 

advance as set forth herein, but acknowledge specifically that any transfer or assignment of the Conservation 

Easement shall have no effect on the Southern Appalachian Highlands Conservancy’s obligation to provide 

stewardship of the Conservation Easement as set forth in  this Article VI. 

  

 D. Existing Responsibilities of Grantor and Grantee Not Affected. Other than as specified 

herein, this Conservation Easement is not intended to impose any legal or other responsibility on the Grantee, or 

in any way to affect any existing obligation to the Grantor as owner of the Property, which includes the 

Easement Area.  Among other things, this shall apply to: 

 

1. Taxes.  The Grantor shall continue to be solely responsible for payment of all taxes and 

assessments levied against the Property.   If the Grantee is ever required to pay any taxes 

or assessments on its interest in the Easement Area, the Grantor will reimburse the 

Grantee for the same. 

 

2. Upkeep and Maintenance.  The Grantor shall continue to be solely  responsible for the 

upkeep and maintenance of the Property, including the Easement Area, to the extent it 

may be required by law.  The Grantee shall have no obligation for the upkeep or 

maintenance of the Easement Area. 

 

3. Liability and Indemnification.  If the Grantee is ever required by a court to pay damages 

resulting from personal injury or property damage that occurs on the Property, including 

the Easement Area, the Grantor shall indemnify and reimburse the Grantee for these 

payments, as well as reasonable attorneys’ fees and other expenses of defending itself, 

unless the Grantee has committed a deliberate act that is determined to be the sole cause 

of the injury or damage.   

  

 E. Conservation Purpose.   Grantor and Grantee, for itself, its successors and assigns, agree that 

this Conservation Easement shall be held exclusively for conservation purposes set forth by the Grant Contract, 

this Conservation Easement and as specified in Section 170(h)(4)(A) of the Code. Further, this Conservation 

Easement shall be construed to promote the purposes of the Act and such purposes of this Conservation 

Easement as are defined in Section 170(h)(4)(A) of the Code. 

  

 F. Recording.  Grantee shall record this instrument and any amendment hereto in timely fashion in 

the official records of Buncombe County, North Carolina, and may re-record it at any time as may be required 

to preserve Grantee's rights. 

 

 G. Notices.  Any notices shall be sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the 

parties at their addresses shown below: 

 

48



CWMTF CE Weaverville Watershed – Grant #2015-072 

Nonprofit Organization  
12  

If to Grantee: If to Owner: 

The Southern Appalachian Highlands Conservancy  The Town of Weaverville 

34 Wall Street, Suite 502  30 South Main Street 

Asheville, NC 28801  Weaverville, NC 28787 

  

 H. Amendments.  Grantor and Grantee, or their successors in interest in the Property, are free to 

jointly amend this Conservation Easement to meet changing conditions, provided that no amendment will be 

allowed that is inconsistent with the purpose(s) of this Conservation Easement or affects the perpetual duration 

of this Conservation Easement. Such amendment(s) require the written consent of both Grantor and Grantee and 

shall be effective upon recording in the public records of Buncombe County, North Carolina. 

  

 I. Environmental Condition of the Property. The Grantor warrants, represents and covenants to 

the Grantee that to the best of its knowledge after appropriate inquiry and investigation: (a) the Property 

described herein is and at all times hereafter will continue to be in full compliance with all federal, state and 

local environmental laws and regulations; (b) as of the date hereof there are no hazardous materials, substances, 

wastes, or environmentally regulated substances (including, without limitation, any materials containing 

asbestos) located on, in or under the Property or used in connection therewith; (c) that there is no environmental 

condition existing on the Property or the Easement Area that may prohibit or impede use of the Property or the 

Easement Area for the purpose(s) set forth herein;  and (d) the Grantor will not allow such uses or conditions. 

  

 J. Indemnity.   The Grantor agrees to the fullest extent permitted by law, to protect, indemnify and 

hold harmless Grantee from and against all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, fines, penalties, costs and 

expenses suffered as a direct or indirect result of any violation of any federal, state, or local environmental or 

land use law or regulation or of the use or presence of hazardous substance, waste or other regulated material in, 

on or under the Property.  

 

 K. Entire Agreement.  The Recitals set forth above and the exhibits, if any, attached hereto are 

incorporated herein by reference.   This instrument, including the Grant Contract incorporated by reference 

herein, sets forth the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to the Project and supersedes all prior 

discussions, negotiations, understandings or agreements relating to the Project. To the extent that this 

Conservation Easement is in conflict with the Grant Contract, the terms of the Conservation Easement shall 

control.     

  

 M.     Interpretation.  This Conservation Easement shall be construed and interpreted under the laws 

of the State and the United States, and any ambiguities herein shall be resolved so as to give maximum effect to 

the conservation purposes sought to be protected herein. The normal rule of construction of ambiguities against 

the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this Conservation Easement.  Further, this Conservation 

Easement shall be construed to promote the purposes of the Act, which authorizes the creation of conservation 

agreements for purposes including those set forth herein, and such conservation purposes as are define in 

Section 170(h) (4) (A) of the Code.  If any provision of this Conservation Easement is found to be invalid, the 

remainder of the provisions of this Conservation Easement, and the application of such provision to persons or 

circumstances other than those as to which it is found to be invalid, shall not be affected thereby. 

 

 N. Parties.  Every provision of this Conservation Easement that applies to the Grantor or to the 

Grantee shall likewise apply to their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.    

  

49



CWMTF CE Weaverville Watershed – Grant #2015-072 

Nonprofit Organization  
13  

 O. No Extinguishment through Merger.  The Parties agree that the terms of this Conservation 

Easement shall survive any merger of the fee and easement interest in the Property and Easement Area.  

Further, the Parties agree that should Grantee, or any successor in interest to Grantee, acquire title to  all or a 

portion of the fee interest in the Property subject to this Conservation Easement, (i) said owner shall observe 

and be bound by the obligations and the restrictions imposed upon the Property by this Conservation Easement, 

and (ii) this Conservation Easement shall not be extinguished through the doctrine of merger in whole or in part 

in view of the public interest in its enforcement. 

  

 P. Subsequent Liens.  No provisions of this Conservation Easement shall be construed as 

impairing the ability of Grantor to use this Property for collateral for borrowing purposes, provided that any 

mortgage or lien arising there from shall be subordinated to this Conservation Easement.  

 

Q. Gender.  The designations Grantor, Grantee, State and Fund, as used herein shall include the 

Parties, their heirs, administrators, successors and assigns, and shall include the singular, plural, masculine, 

feminine or neuter as the context may require. 

 

R. Headings.  The headings of the various sections of this Conservation Easement have been 

inserted for convenience only and shall not modify, define, limit or expand the express provisions of this 

Conservation Easement. 

 

  TO HAVE AND TO HOLD unto the State by and though the Fund, its successors and assigns, 

forever. The covenants agreed to and the terms, conditions, restrictions and purposes imposed as aforesaid shall 

be binding upon Grantor, Grantor’s representatives, successors and assigns, and shall continue as a servitude 

running in perpetuity with the Property. 

 

 [See next page for signatures and notary acknowledgement] 

50



CWMTF CE Weaverville Watershed – Grant #2015-072 

Nonprofit Organization  
14  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and Grantee, by authority duly given, have hereunto caused these presents 

to be executed in such form as to be binding, the day and year first above written. 

 

      GRANTOR:  

      THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

       

      BY:   ______________________________  

 [Corporate Seal]   NAME: Dottie Sherrill___________________ 

      TITLE: Mayor_________________________ 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Selena Coffey, Town Clerk 

 

NORTH CAROLINA 

BUNCOMBE COUNTY  

 

I, the undersigned Notary Public, do hereby certify that Dottie Sherrill personally came before 

me this date and acknowledged that she is the Mayor of the Town of Weaverville, a local 

municipality, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the corporation, the foregoing 

document was signed in its name by Dottie Sherrill, its Mayor, sealed with its corporate seal and 

attested by herself as its Mayor.   Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this the ____ day 

of ________________, 2017. 

      

___________________________________________, Notary Public 

Print Name:  ________________________________ 

 

My Commission Expires: ______________ 

 

STAMP/SEAL 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

51



CWMTF CE Weaverville Watershed – Grant #2015-072 

Nonprofit Organization  
15  

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

Being all that tract of land containing 313.715 acres, more or less, located in Reems Creek Township, 

Buncombe County, North Carolina, as shown on a plat entitled "Survey of a Conservation Easement for the 

Southern Appalachian Highlands Conservancy and the NC Clean Water Management Trust Fund" prepared by 

McMahan & Associates, P.A., dated March 20_______, 2017, duly recorded in the Office of the Register of 

Deeds for Buncombe County, North Carolina in Plat Book 172___ Page 200___, reference to which said plat is 

hereby made for a more particular description of the property shown theron, and being the same property 

described in Deed Book 204 at Page 5, Buncombe County Registry. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

52



CWMTF CE Weaverville Watershed – Grant #2015-072 

Nonprofit Organization  
16  

EXHIBIT B 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF EASEMENT AREA 

Being that tract of land containing 309.87310.39 acres, more or less, located in Reems Creek Township, 

Buncombe County, North Carolina, labeled "309.87310.39 Acre Conservation Easement  Area" as shown on a 

plat entitled "Survey of a Conservation Easement for Southern Appalachian Highlands Conservancy and the NC 

Clean Water Management Trust Fund" prepared by McMahan & Associates, P.A., for the NC Clean Water 

Management Trust Fund dated March 20________, 2017, duly recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds 

for Buncombe County, North Carolina in Plat Book 172___ Page 200___, reference to which said plat is hereby 

made for a more particular description of the property shown theron. 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

53



54



55



56



57



58


	Apr-17-17 Agenda
	Feb 6 2017 Spec Called Mtg Mins
	03-20-17 Town Council Minutes
	Earth Day Proclamation - 2017
	council action request ref Arbor Day Proclamation
	agenda item-public servants week proclamation
	Monthly Tax Report
	Quarterly Department Reports
	council action request ref July 4 Road Closure
	council action request ref FY2018 Budget
	Eller Cove Conservation Easement
	PWwaterline44 Central Avenue 4172017AGENDA_Item

	Mayor of the Town of:                     Dottie Sherrill
	do hereby proclaim:       Weaverville, North Carolina
	as:          Saturday, April 22, 2017
	and I urge all:        Weaverville
	day of:               17th
	undefined:         April, 2017
	Mayor: 


